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To: - The State Securities Commission;
- Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange;
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1. Tén tb chirc: Téng Cong ty Phat trién D6 thi Kinh Bic — CTCP '

Name of organization: Kinh Bac City Development Holding Corporation
- Mai chimg khoan/ Securities code: KBC \

- Dia chi/ Adress: L6 B7, KCN Qué V3§, phuong Phuong Liéu, tinh Bac Ninh, Viét Namk .

Lot B7, Que Vo Industrial Park, Phuong Lieu Ward, Bac Ninh Province, Vietnam -
- Dién thoai lién hé/ Tel: (0222) 3634034 Fax: (0222) 3634035
- E-mail: infotwkinhbaccity.vn Website: http://www.kinhbaccity.vn

2. N6i dung thong tin cong bd/ Content of disclosure:

Cin cit theo Thong tu 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay 16/11/2020 ctia B Tai chinh huéng dan vé cong b
thong tin trén thi trudng chimg khoan, Téng Cong ty Phat trién D6 thi Kinh Bic — CTCP (KBC)
Xin trén trong céng bd thong tin v& Bdo cdo tai chinh 6 thing diu nim 2025 da dwgc sodt xét
nhu sau:

Pursuant to the Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16/11/2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance on
guidelines for disclosure of information on the securities market, Kinh Bac City Development
Holding Corporation (KBC) would like to disclosure information on the reviewed Financial
Statements for the first six-month period of the year 2025 as follows:

- Béo céo tii chinh riéng 6 thdng dAu nim 2025 d3 dugc soéat xét / The reviewed separate
financial statements for the first six-month period of the year 2025;

- Bdo céo tai chinh hop nhit 6 thing diu nam 2025 d3 dugc soat xét / The reviewed
consolidated financial statements for the first six-month period of the year 2025;

3. Thong tin nay d4 duoc cong bd trén trang thong tin dién tir ciia cong ty vao ngay 25/08/2025
tai dudmg dan http://www.kinhbaccity.vn / This information has been published on the
company's website since August 25, 2025 at the link http://www.kinhbaccity.vn.
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Chuing t6i xin cam két cAc thong tin cong bd trén day 1a dung su thit va hoan toan chiu trach
nhiém trudc phéap luat vé ndi dung céc thong tin da cong bd./ We hereby certify that the
information provided is true and correct and we bear the full responsibility to the law.

TM. TONG CONG TY PHAT TRIEN

Tai ligu dinh kém/ (
Attachments: PO THI KINH BAC - CTCP
Toan vén tai liéu muc 2/ ON BEHALF OF KINH BAC CITY DEVELOPMENT HOLDING
Full document in section 2 CORPORATION

Nguoi dwoc iy quyén cong bd théng tin

Person authorized to disclose informaion
Phé Tong Giam doc
_—~Bepun~General Director
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries
For the six-month period ended 30 June 2025

Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors submits its report together with the reviewed interim consclidated financial statements of
KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation ("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereafter collectively referred
as "the Group") as at 30 June 2025 and for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025 ("the period”).

Results of interim consolidated operations

The results of the Group's operations for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025 are presented in the interim
consolidated statement of income.

Board of Management, Board of Supervisors and Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Management, Board of Supervisors and Board of Directors during the period and fo the
date of this report were:

Board of Management Position
Mr. Dang Thanh Tam Chairman
Mr. Mguyen Thi Thu Huong Member
Mr. Dang MNguyen Quynh Anh  Member

Mr. Huynh Phat
Mr. Le Hoang Lan

Member
Independent member

Board of Supervisors Position
Ms. Nguyen Bich Ngoc Head of the Board
Ms. The Thi Minh Hong Member
Mr. Tran Tien Thanh Member
Board of Directors Position

Ms. Mguyen Thi Thu Huong  General Director

Mr. Phan Anh Dung Deputy General Directar

Ms. Nguyen My Ngoc Deputy General Director

Mr. Dang Nguyen NMam Anh  Deputy General Director

Mr. Pham Phuc Hieu Deputy General Director cum Chief Accountant

Appointed dated 14 March 2025

Legal Representative

The legal representative of the Company during the period and at the date of this report is Mr. Dang Thanh Tam,
Chairman. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Huong — General Director has been authorized by Mr. Dang Thanh Tam to sign the
accompanying consclidated financial statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025 In accordance with the
Authorisation Letter No. 0310.2/2024/KBC/UQ dated 3 October 2024.



KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries
For the six-month period ended 30 June 2025

The Board of Directors' responsibility in respect of the interim consolidated
financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring the interim consolidated financial statements are properly drawn up
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2025 and of the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the six-month period then ended. In preparing the interim consolidated financial statements, the
Board of Directors is required fo:

s Adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates
and then apply them consistently;

s Comply with the disclosure requirements of Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System
for Enterprises and relevant statutory requirements on preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements;

s Maintain adeguate accounting records and an effective system of internal control;

= Prepare the interim consolidated financial statements on a going-concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to
assume that the Group will continue its operations in the foreseeable future; and

« Control and direct effectively the Group in all material decisions affecting its operations and performance and
ascertain that such decisions andfor instructions have been properly reflected in the consclidated financial
statements.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Group has complied with the above requirements in preparing the interim
consolidated financial statements.

Statement by the Board of Directors

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheet, interim consolidated
statement of income and interim consolidated statement of cash flows, together with the notes thereto, have been
properly drawn up and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2025 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the six-month period then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and relevant statutory requirements on preparation and
ation of the interim consolidated financial statements.

Bac Minh, Vietnam
22 August 2025
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Mo: 26-11-045-4

To: Shareholders, the Board of Management
KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation

\We have reviewed the accompanying interim consolidated financial statements of KinhBac City Development Holding
Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries ("the Group"), prepared on 22 August 2025, which comprise the
interim consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2025 and the interim consolidated statement of income, interim
consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policles and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 5 to 52.

Board of Directors' Responsibility for the interim consolidated financial statements

Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these interim consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises
and the relevant statutory requirements on preparation and presentation of the interim consolidated financial
statermenis. and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Interim
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the interim consolidated financial statements based on the results of
our review. We conducted our review in accordance with Vietnam Standards on Review Engagements Mo. 2410 -
Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.

A review of interim financial statements consists of making interviews of the Company's people responsible for financial
and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope
than an audit conducted in accordance with Vietnamese Auditing Standards and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would be aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit, Accordingly, wa
do not express an audit opinion,

grantthornton.cam.yn
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Auditor's conclusions

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the accompanying interim
consolidated financial statements, in all material respects, does not give a true a fair view of the interim consolidated
financial position of KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2025 and the
results of its consolidated operations and consolidated cash flows for the period of six-month then ended, in
accordance with the prevailing Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System for
Enterprises and relevant statutory requirements on preparation and presentation of the interim consolidated financial
statements.

Other matters

The consolidated financial statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2024 and for the year ended 31
December 2024, including the comparative information, have been reviewed and audited by other auditors whose
reviewed report dated 23 August 2024 expressed an unqualified conclusion and audited report dated 29 March 2025
expressad an unqualified opinion, respectively.

Auditor's Practicing Certificate 0808-2023-068-1
Deputy General Director

Hanaoi, Vietnam
22 August 2025

0 POEE Grand Thamion {Vislnam) Linied, All rights reseomed.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Interim consolidated balance sheet

as at 30 June 2025
Motes Code 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND VND
ASSETS
Current assets 100 61,006,286,667,575 36,075,300,688,153
Cash and cash equivalents & 10 18,138,916,467,312 6,566,036,174 506
Cash 111 12,015,193,834,242 532 997 405,824
Cash equivalents 112 6,123,722,633,070 6,033,038,768 672
Short-term Investments 7 120 1,879,936,007,100 1,857,951,615,850
Trading securities i | 121 1,862,358,461,369 1,862,358 461 369
Proviston for diminution in value of trading securities 71 122 (8,772,454,269) (6,756,845,419)
Investments held to maturity 7.2 123 24,350,000,000 2,350,000,000
Short-term receivables 130 16,843,460,036,739 13,308,852, 766,763
Short-tarmn trade accounts receivable 8 13 1,722,778,767,250 670,879,391,809
Short-term prepayments to suppliers a 132 6,434,705,644,333 3,500,405,8099,524
Short-term loan receivablas 1 135 3,708,691,677,387 3,281,260,294, 254
Other short-term receivables 12 136 5,084,068,315,709 5,963,091,549,126
Provision for doubtful dabts 8,10 137 {106,784,367,950) (106,784,367 ,950)
Inventories 140 23,651,747,627,329 13,845,673,541,868
Inventories 13 141 23,651,747,627,329 13,849,673,941 BES
Other current assets 150 492,226,629,095 452 876,188,066
Short-térm prepaid expenses 14 151 B0,438,743,640 63,331,758,024
Walue added tax to be reclaimed 152 342,728,048,820 347 564,373,138
Taxes and amounts receivable from the State budget 21 153 68,947,766,635 81,928,882,904
Other current assels 155 112,070,000 51,165,000
The notes set out on pages from 11 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements §
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Interim consolidated balance sheet

(continued)
as at 30 June 2025

Notes Code 30 June 2025 31 December 2024

VND VND

Non-current assets 200 9,156,803,978,613 8,654,534 222377
Long-term receivables 210 1,157,088,700,274 1,365,556,888,880
Lang-lerm loans receivable 1 215 563,407 865,995 757 160,865,995
Other long-term receivables 12 216 593,691,834,279 608,396,022 885
Fixed assats 220 378,563,085,520 408,327 ,2048,161
Tangible fixed assets 15 221 378,402,223 ,873 408 144 202,512
- Historical cost 222 B92,288,065487 BAE, 965,494 578

- Accumulated daeprecialion 223 (513,885,6841,674) (478,821,292 066)
Intangible fixed azsats 227 160,861,647 183,095 648
- Historical cost 228 634,415,500 634,415,500

- Accumulated amortisation 229 (473,553,853 {451,319,851)
Investment properties 16 220 1,192,681,209,703 1,292 284,269,608
- Historical cost 2 1,500,124,633,188 1,549,022,147 988
- Accumufated deprecialion 232 (307, 443,423,485) (256,737,678,382)
Long-term assets in progress 240 874,034,279,801 731,331,293,581
Caongtruction in progress 17 242 874,034,279,801 731,331,293,581
Long-term investments 18 250 5,708,895,690,005 4,817.427,030,823
Investments in associates and joint ventures i8.1 252 5,303,674,264 927 4,394 274,005,745
Invesiments in other entities 182 253 406,569,500,000 A24,500,200,000
Provision for long-term investments 182 254 (1,348,074,922) (1,348,074,922)
Other non-current assets 260 45,530,013,310 39,607, 441,326
Long-term prepaid expenses 14 261 45,530,013,310 39,607 441,328
Total assets 270 70,363,090,646,168 44, 729,824 910,530
The notes set out on pages from 11 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 6



KinhBac City Development Holding Cerporation and its subsidiaries

Interim consolidated balance sheet

(continued) as at 30 June 2025

Motes Code 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND VND
RESOURCES

Liahilities 300 44 863,619,526,269 24,086,018,776,874
Current liabilities 310 15,687,212,245,659 7,092,665, 737,443
Shori-term trade accounts payable 18 m 726,241,235,051 529,481,109,109
Short-term advances from customars 20 aiz 1,091,445, 826,936 757,523,177, 558
Taxes and amounts payable to the Stale budget 21 i3 662,901,193,729 210,231,024,005
Payable to employess 314 803,756,682 228,123,345
Short-term accrued expenses 23 s 3,391,150,352 467 2.205,794,271,910
Short-term unearned revenus 318 4, 787,819,424 §,346,030,681
Other short-term payables 24 39 8,748,478,579,581 3,005,527 869,435
Short-term borrowings 25 320 964,476,880,986 371,484,360, 597
Bonus and welfare funds 32 6,927,600,803 7,049,770,803
Long-term liabilities 330 29,076,407,279,610 16,992,353,039,536
Long-term acorued expenses 23 333 B 589,879,723
Long-term uneamed revenue 336 32,624,013,443 35,877,018,134
Other long-term payables 24 337 2,803,947 566,459 6,079,254 094 359
Long-term borrowings 25 338 25,109,559,453,27T1 9,741,086 426,831
Deferred income tax liabilities 38 a4 1,120,324,278,475 1,134, 583,652 527
Long-term provisions for payables 242 851,967,862 951,967 062
Owners' equity 400 25,699,471,120,919 20,644,906,133,551
Capital sources and funds 26 410 25,609,471,120,919 20,644 906,133,551
Paid-in capital 7 411 9,417,547,580,000 7,676,047 590,000
- Ordinary shares with voling rights 411a 8,417,547 ,590,000 7.676,047,590,000
Share premium prg 412 5,163,224,570,000 2,743,629,570,000
Other capital under owner's equily 26 414 3,324,832,200,000 3,324,832,200,000
Investment and development funds 418 2,223,693,823 2,223,693 823
Ratained earnings 421 5,896,292 756,954 4,811,255 659,305

- Cumulative undistributed profits after tax at end of tha
previous periodfyear 421a 4,811,255,659,305 4,429,331, 543,041
- Undisiibuted profits after tax of the current perodfyear 421b 1,185,037,097,643 381,924, 116,264
Nan-controfling Interests 29 429 1,795,360,310,142 2,087,017 420,423
Total resources 440 70,363,090,646,188 44,729 5924 510,530

o
Pham Phuc Hieu Luu Phuong Mai
Chief Accountant Preparer

The notes set out on pages from 11 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Interim consolidated statement of income

for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025

Six-month period ended Six-month period ended
Motes Coda 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
VND WND
Gross sales 01 3,691,424,641,238 1.044,058,040,253
Less deductions: 02 - -
Met sales a0 10 3,691,424,641,238 1,044,058,040,253
Cost of goods sold Mw 11 {1,887,020,751,783) (505,507 ,373,188)
Gross profit 20 1,804,403,889,455 538,551,667 065
Incoma from financial activities a2z 21 298,399,082 497 177,118,086,189
Expenses from financial activities a3 22 (224,547,567 ,652) {108,051,806,311)
- Including: interest expense 23 {206,922,011,604) (101,437,384, 163)
Profit{Loss) in associates 181 24 69,145,859,182 (B,468,055,613)
Salling expenses 34,36 25 (50,583,798,270} (52,562,669,843)
Ganeral and administrative expenses 35, 36 26 (246,038,404,377) (227 ,549,535,731)
Operating profit 30 1,650,779,060,835 319,036,685,756
Other income k| 8,361,965,528 38,624 ,455,987
Other expenses 3z (2,268,260,681) {7,860,321,802)
Profit from other activities 40 6,092,695,845 30,774,134,085
Met accounting profit before tax 50 1,656,871,756,680 349,810,819.841
Current corporate income tax expense a7 51 (411,512,5640,093) (145,541 981,828)
Deferred corporate incomne tax income/(expense) a7, 38 52 5,259,374,053 (8,483,522 640)
Met profit after tax &0 1,250,618,580,640 195,785,315,373
Attributable to
Profit after tax of shareholders of the parent company 61 1,187,940,746,993 156,363,835 627
Profit after tax of nen-conlrolling interest 62 62,677,842,647 40,421 379,746
Basic earnings per shara 28 70 1,534 202
Diluted eamlngs per share 28 71 1,534 202
P
Pham Phuec Hieu Luu Phuong Mai
Chief Accountant Freparer
The notes set aut on pages from 11 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalemants 8
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Interim consolidated statement of cash

flows

(indirect method)

for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025

Moles Code Six-month period ended Six-month pericd ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
VND VD
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax o 1,656,871,756,680 349,810,819,841
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 02 86,870,639,853 79,443,850,511
and investiment properties
Change in provisions 03 15,608,850 383,977,710
Gain from investing activilies 05 (386,269,245,609) (165,312,994 655)
Interast and bond Esuance expenses 08 216,797,011,604 101,437,384,163
Other adjustments o7 (2,903,649,344) -
Operating profit before adjustments to working capital oa 1,671,382,122,034 365,763,037,570
Changes in accounts receivable o9 (3,482,628,146,180) (382,036,821,244)
Changes in inventory 10 (9,802,073,585,461) (556,004,792 220)
Changes in accounts payable 11 4,043,993,037,853 6,084 268,893,175
Changes in prepaid expenses 12 (23,029,557,600) (15,700,027, 346)
Interest paid 14 (184,105,849 ,353) (61,677, 687,934)
Corporate Income tax paid 15 (193,281,482,008) (388,036,841 ,385)
Mat cash flows (used injigenarated from operating 20 (8,069,643,460,615) 5,045 486,660,616
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquizitions of fixed assets and other non-currant 21
assels {151,606,381,105) (227,123,216,314)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 22 87,669,777,800 -
Loan granted of other antities 23 (1,133,673,000,000) (5,980,340,029,758)
Collections of loans to other entitias 24 B77,994 616,857 290,497 820,000
Investments in ather antities 25 (840,253,500,000) (12,788,537,087)
Proceads from divestments in other entities 26 356,400,000,000 5
Dividends, interest and olher investmeant income 27 352,227 693,040 12 566,755,195
Met cash flows used In investing activities 30 (471,240,793,408) (5,917,187,137,964)

The notes set out on pages from 11 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and lis subsidiaries

Interim consolidated Statement of cash

flows (continued) (indirect method)
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025

Motes Code  Six-month period ended Ske-month perlod ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
VND VND

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from capital contributions k:§ ] 4,162,185,000,000 -
Proceeds from loans’ principals 33 16,955,798,500,062 1,682,814,284,132
Repayments of loans' principals 34 (1,004,218,953,233) (442,143,557 379)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 40 20,113,764,546,829 1,240,670,726,753
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 50 11,672,880,292,6806 368,970,249 405
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period & &0 6,566,036,174,506 841,304 457 657
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period f 70 18,138,916,467 312 1,210,274,707 062

/_{‘;‘,_

Pham Phuc Hieu Luu Phuong Mai
Chief Accountant Preparer

The notes set out on pages from 11 to 52 form an integral part of thege consclidated financial stalements 10



KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Notes to the interim consolidated financial

statements
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025

;| Nature of operations

KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation ('the Company”) is a joint stock company established under the Law
on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Business Registration Cerfificate No. 2103000012 issued by the Depariment
of Planning and Investment of Bac Ninh province on 27 March 2002, and subsequent amendments, being the 22nd
amendment No. 2300233993 granted by the Department of Finance of Bac Ninh Province on 26 June 2025 o Increase
its chartered capital from VND7,676,047,590,000 to VND9,417,547,590,000. On 15 July 2025, the Company received
the 23rd amended Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 2300233992, the latest, issued by the Department of Finance
of Bac Ninh Province to update the address of its head office.

Total shares after increased capital is 941,754,759 shares. Par value: VND10,000. Securifies code: KBC, are listed in
Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange ("HOSE") in accordance with Decision No. 153/QD-SGDHCM issued by HOSE on
7 December 2008,

The current principal activities of the Group are to invest, construct and trade in real estate, industrial park
infrastructure; to lease, lease with the option to buy factories, or sell factory plants constructed by the Company in
industrial parks, residential - urban areas, financial investment and other activities registered under the Enterprise
Registration Ceriificate ("ERC").

The Group's business cycle for industrial zone and real estate activities, exceeding 12 menths, commences from the
time of obtaining the investment licence, carrying out land clearance, and constructing the infrastructure of the
industrial zones and urban areas until completion and handover to customers. Accordingly, the Group's business cycle
may extend beyond 12 months. The business cycle for other activities is 12 months,

The Company's head office is located at Lot B7, Que Vo Industrial Park, Phuong Lieu Ward, Bac Ninh Province,
Vietnam and its branch is located at No. 20 Phung Khac Khoan, Sai Gon Ward, He Chi Minh City, Vietnam,

As at 30 June 2025, the Company had 18 subsidiaries (31 December 2024: 17 subsidiaries) as follow:
Voting Effective

right interest Main activities
No. Company’s name (%) (%) Head office in the ERC
| - Group of directly owned subsidiaries
1  Saigon - Bac Giang 100,00 9646 Lot CC, Quang Chau Industrial Investment, building
Industrial Park Corporation Park, Menh ward, Bac Ninh and trading real estates
province, Vietnam
2  Saigon - Hal Phong 89.26 89.26 Trang Due Industrial Park, Investment, building
Industrial Park Corporation An Phong ward, Hai Phong city, and trading real estates
Vietnam
3 Morthwest Saigon City 74.30 72.82 Tram Bom hamiet, Mational Road  Invesiment, building
Development Corporafion Mo. 22, Cu Chiward, Ho Chi Minh  and trading real estates
City, Vietnam
4  Trang Cat Urban 100.00  100.00 Bai Trieu Area, in Dinh Vu - Cat Investment, building
Development One Member Hai Economical Zone, Hai An and trading real estales
Company Limited ward, Hai Phong city, Vielnam
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Vaoting  Effective
right  interest Main activities
Mo. Company's name (%) (%) Head office in the ERC
| - Group of directly owned subsidiaries
5§  NGD Invest Sole Member 100.00 100.00 10 Hang Bot Street, O Cho Dua Investment, building
Company Limited ward, Hanai city, Vietnam and trading real estates
B  Kinh Bac Office and Factory 100.00 100.00 Lot B7, Que Vo Industrial Park, Investment, building
Business One Member Phuong Lieu ward, Bac Ninh and trading real estates
Company Limited province, Vietnam
7 Tien Duong Development 51.00 §1.00 100 An Trach Street, Giang Vo Investment, building
Holding Joint Stock ward, Hanoi city, Vietnam and trading real estates
Company
8  Hung Yen Investment and 88.69 96.28 210 Nguyen Van Linh Strest, Building and trading
Development Corporation Son Mam ward, Hung Yen real estates
province, Vietnam
8  Vung Tau Investment Group (") (*y LK 28 Hang Dieu 1 Street, Building and trading
Joint Stock Company Rach Dua ward, Ho Chi Minh city, real estales
Vielnam
Il - Group of indirectly owned subsidiaries
1 Tan Phu Trung - Long An 10000 72.82 MNo. 133, Road 835, Can Giuoc Architectural activities
Industrial Park One Member ward, Tay Ninh province, Vietnam  and related technical
Company Limited consultancy
2 Bac Giang - Long An 10000 9646 MNo.133, Road B35, Can Giuoc Architectural activities
Industrial Park One Member ward, Tay Ninh province, Vietnam  and related technical
Company Limited consultancy
3 Tan Tap Industrial 100.00 B9.26 Mo, 133, Road 835, Can Giuoc Archifectural activities
Infrastructure Development ward, Tay Ninh province, Vietnam  and related technical
Company Limited consultancy
4 Long An Development Invest 60.00 57.42 Tan Dong hamlet, Tan Tap ward,  Building and trading
Joint Stock Company Tay Minh province, Vietnam real estates
5  Bao Lac Spiritual Park Joint  65.00 58,02 Mgo Xa village, Yen Phong ward, Funeral service
Stock Company Bac Minh Province, Vietnam activities
6 Quang Yen Electronics 100.00 8926 Lot NAS-2, high-class factory and  Manufacture of
Company Limited factory project complex in Dam electronic components
Mha Mac area, Lien Hoa ward,
Quang Minh province, Vietnam
7  Quang Yen Manufacturing  100.00 89.26 Lot NA8-1, high-class factory and  Producing nozzles for
Industry Company Limited factory project complex, Dam Nha  agricultural machinery
Mac area, Lien Hoa ward, Quang  engines
Ninh province, Vietnam
8  Hung Yen Hospitality 88.00 84 .35 2™ Floor, 210 Nguyen Van Linh Trading real estates
Services Joint Stock Street, Son Nam ward, Hung Yen
Company province, Vietnam
8  Tan Phu Trung - Tay Ninh 100,00 72.82 Mo. 348 Group 13, Bac Ben Sol Architectural activities

Industrial Park Cne Member
Company Limited (**)

hamiet, Ninh Dien ward, Tay Ninh
province, Vietnam

and related technical
consullancy
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corperation and its subsidiaries

) Vung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company was registered and established in 2021, As of 30 June
2025, the Company and the remaining shareholders of Vung Tau Invesiment Group Joint Stock Company
did not yet complete their capital contributions to this subsidiary. Details regarding the capital contribution
commitment to this company are presented in Note 41.2.

™ Tan Phu Trung — Tay Ninh Industrial Park One Member Company Limited was registered and established on
24 February 2025. This company Is a subsidiary of Northwest Saigon City Development Corporation which
owns 100% of its charter capital.

In addition, the Group also has associates as disclosed in Note 18

As at 30 June 2025, the Company have 237 employees (31 December 2024: 226 employees).

2.  Fiscal year and accounting currency
2.1 Fiscal year

The fiscal years of the Group will be from 1 January to 31 December.
The interim consolidated financial statements are prepared for the period from 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025,

2.2 Accounting currency

The Interim consolidated financial statements are prepared in Vietnamese Dong ("VND")

3 Basis of preparation of interim consolidated financial statements

Basis of preparation of interim consolidated financial statements

The Interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises, Circular 202/2014/TT-BTC Issued by the Ministry of
Finance on 22 December 2014 and relevant statutory requirements on preparation and presentation of the interim
consolidated financial statement.

The interim consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in countries or
jurisdictions other than the SR of Vietnam. Furthermore their use is not designed for those who are nol informed about
Vietnam's accounting principles, procedures and practices,

Basis of consolidation

The interim consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six-month period ended 30 June 2025 were Interim
consoclidated on basis of the separate financial statements of KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation ("the
Company”) and the financial statements of its subsidiaries (as described in Note 1).

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities, The Group obtains and exercises the control through veting rights and
shareholding.

The subsidiaries’ financial statements are consolidated into the Group's interim consclidated financial statements from
the date when the Group gains the power of control to the date when the Group loses the power of control. The
subsidiaries’ accounting policies are adjusted in accordance with accounting policies applied by the Parent Company.

A non-controlling interest represents the portion of the profit of loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to an
equity interest that is not owned by the Group. It is based upon the minarity’s share of post-acquisition fair values of
the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities. When the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the profits
applicable to the minority are taken to the interim consolidated statement of income until the minority's share of losses
previously taken to the interim consolidated statement of income Is fully recovered,
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiarles

Changes in share interest in subsidiaries which do not impact the control over the Group's subsidiaries will be
recognised in line with the equity transaction method. In this method, differences between addition or disposal of
invesiment costs and changes in corresponding interest in subsidiaries’ net assets are recorded as changes in equity.
Mo adjustment to net book value of subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities recognised previously, if any.

The results of operations of a subsidiary disposed of are included in the Interim consclidated statement of income until
the date of disposal which is the date on which the parent ceases to have control of the subsidiary. The difference
between the proceeds from the disposal of the subsidiary and the net book value of its assets less liabilities as of the
date of disposal is recognised In the interim consolidated income statement as the profit or loss on the disposal of the
subsidiary.

The carrying amount of the remaining investment at the date that it ceases to be a subsidiary is carried using the cost
method.

4, Accounting policies
4.1 Foreign exchange

Transactions arising in currencies other than the reporting currency of VND are translated at the prevailing exchange
rates at transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are respactively translated at foreign currency buying rate and selling rate at the balance sheet date as quoted by
commercial banks where the Company regularly trades. The foreign currency cash in banks at the balance sheet date
are translated at buying rate of the bank where the Company opens the foreign currency account. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised as income or expense in the Interim consolidated statement of
income.

4.2 Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting
System and prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could different from those estimates.

4.3 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and cash in banks as well as short-term highly liquid investmenls
and bank deposits with maturity terms of not more than 3 months.

4.4 Investments

Trading securities

Trading securities include securities which are held for trading purpose to earn profit, Trading securities are Initially
recorded at cost, which includes the purchase price plus the transaction costs, If any, such as the cost of brokerage,
transaction expenses, information provision expense, taxes, fees and bank charges. Cost of trading securities is
recognised at the fair value of the consideration at the time of transaction. -

The Group recognises trading securities when it has ownership of the assets, specifically as follows:

. Listed securities are recognised recorded at the time of order matching; and
. Unlisted securities are recognised at the time when official ownership Is established in accordance with
regulations.

Provision for diminution in value of trading securities is made only if there is evidence stating that the market value of
securities held for trading purposes is lower than the carrying value. The provision is reversed if there is a subsequent
increase in the market value of securities occurring after the recognition of provision. Reversed provision of trading
securities Is limited to not exceed their book value with the assumption that no provision has been made.

Gainfloss from sale of trading securities is recognised in the statement of income. Cost of trading securities disposed
ls measured by using the moving weighted average method.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Investments held-to-maturity

Investments held-to-maturity include term deposits, bonds, preferred stock where the issuer must repurchase at a
certain time in the future and loans held-to-maturity for the purpose of eaming interest perodically and other
investments held-ta-maturity. Investments held-to-maturity are initially measured at cost less provision for diminution
in value. Provision for diminution in value of investments held-to-maturity is made when there |s unlikely to recover
those investments. Losses from irrecoverable investments, which have not been made provision, are recorded as
expenses in the reporting period and reduction to the carrying amount of the investments.

Investments in joint ventures and associates

The Group's investment in its associates is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. An associate is an
entity in which the Group has significant influence that is neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The Group generally
deems they have significant influence if they have over 20% of the voting rights,

Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill arising on acquisition of the assoclate Is
included in the camying amount of the Investment. Goodwill is not amortised and subject to annual review for
impairment.

The share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) of the associates is presented on face of the consclidated income statement
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. In addition, when there is a change
directly recognised in the associate’s equity, the Group will recognise its share corresponding to those changes in
equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
Dividend/profit sharing received or receivable from associates reduces the carrying amount of the investment.

The financlal statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting pericd and use the same accounting
policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of
the Group.

The Group stops applying the equity method from the point when the investment is no longer an associate. If the
remaining investment in the associate becomes a long-term financial investment, the investment is recognized at fair
value and considered its initial cost at the time of initial recognition. The profitf{loss) from the liguidation of the
investment in the associate is recognized in the consolidated income statement. Any unrealized profit corresponding
to the Group's share in the associate at the time the equity method s discontinued is also recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

Investments in equity of other entities

Investments in equity of other entities are investments in equity instruments of other entities without neither cantralling
rights nor co-cantrolling rights and without significant influence over investee. These investments are initially recorded
at cost. Provision for diminution In value is made when the investees make losses, except when the loss was forecasted
by the Management before the date of investment,

4.5 Account receivable

Trade account receivables are measured at their net recoverable amount after provision for doubtful debts. The
provision for doubtful debts is made based on the Management's assessment on indication that they might not be
recoverable. Doubtful debts are written off when they are irrecoverable.

4.6 Lending

Lending are loans to other parties for earning interest under agreements among parties which are hold to maturity.
Lending are initialised at cosl.

Subsequently, lending are measured at their net recoverable amount after provision for doubtful lending. The provision
for doubtful lending is made based on the Management's assessment on indication that they might not be recoverable.
Doubtful lending are written off when they are irecoverable,
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

4.7 Inventories

Industrial and residential real estate properties which have been developed for sale in the normal course of operations
of the Group, not held for lease or capital appreciation, are recorded as inventory at the lower of cost incurred In
bringing each product to its present location and condition, and net realisable value.

The cost of real estate properties for sale comprises land use fees and land rentals, land compensation and clearance
costs, costs of road construction and drainage system construction, costs of tree planting and other infrastructure,
construction costs payable to contractors, capitalized borrowing costs, consultancy costs, design costs, and other
related cosls.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices at
the reporting date and discounted for the time value of money if material, less costs to completion and the estimated
costs of sale.

The cost of real estate properties sold, as recognized in the consclidated statement of profit or loss, is determined
based on the direct costs incurred in the development of such properties and the allocated general costs, which are
distributed based on the corresponding area of each property.

Provision for obsolete inventories

An inventory provision is made for the estimated loss arising due to the impairment of value of finished goods, and
other inventories owned by the Group, based on appropriate evidence of impairment available at the consolidated
balance sheet date.

Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded into the cost of goods sold account in the consolidated
income statement.

4.8 Tangible fixed asset

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. When assets are sold or retired, their
cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
is included in the statement of income.

Cost

The initial cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price, Including import duties and nan-refundable
purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. The initial cost of tangible fixed assets with attached equipment and spare parts for replacement is the
total directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use less the value of
equipment and spare parts for replacement, Expenditures incurred after the tangible fixed assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to the statement of income in
the period the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of a tangible fixed asset beyond
its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed
assets. The initial cost of tangible fixed assets transferred from construction in progress includes installation and trial
operation costs less the value of products from trial production.

Depreciation
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings and structures (including land development and infrastructure costs)  5-45
Machinery and equipment 3-10
Vehicles 4-10
Office equipment 3-8
Others 3-8

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewedperiodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of tangible fixed assets.
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KinhBac City Development Helding Corporation and its subsidiaries

49 Intangible fixed assets

Computer software
The value of computer software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of 3 to 10 years.

410  Investment properties

Investment properiies are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

Cost

Investment property Is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of an investment property
comprises its purchase price, cost of land use rights and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to ils
working condition for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after investment property has been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to income in the period in which the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in future economic benefits in
excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, the expenditures are
capitalised as an additional cost of investiment property.

Depreciation
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment property. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings and structures B-10
Land development and infrastructure costs 36 - 44

Investment property held-for-price appreciation has not been depreciated since 1 January 2017 in accordance with
Circular 200. Impairment of investment property is recognised only if there is possible evidence stating that the value
of investment property held-for-price appreciation is lower than market value and losses can be determined refiably.
Any losses are recognised in cost of goods sold during the period. Where there is an increase in value of investment
properties after impairment loss was recorded, the amount of increase in the value of investment properties is equal
the maximum amount of impairment loss was recorded previously.

4.1 Long-term construction in progress

Construction in progress

Construction in progress Is the whole value of the fixed assets have been bought, investment of canstruction in
progress includes the cost of buildings, machinery and equipment which are in the process of construction or
installation, overhaul of fixed assets in progress, completed fixed assets have not been handover or fixed assets have
not been put to use. No depreciation is recorded until the construction and installation is complete and the asset is
ready for its intended use at which time the related costs are transferred to tangible fixed assets.

412  Prepaid expense

Brokerage fees for uncompleted real estate transfers

Brokerage fees for uncompleted real estate transfers have been paid but not allocated due to uncompleted real estate
transfer contracts.

Infrastructure overhaul costs
Infrastructure overhaul costs not qualified for recognition as fixed assets amortised on a straight-line basis over 36
months.

Tools and equipment

Tools and supplies included assets held for use by the Company in the normal course of business whose costs of
individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not qualified for recognition as fixed assets under Circular
45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 of the Ministry of Finance which provides guidance on management, use and
depreciafion of fixed assets, Cost of tools and instruments are amortised on a siraight-line basis over a period ranging
from (1) to (3) years.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

4.13 Operating leases

Leases wherein substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assels remain with the leasing company are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental payments applicable to such leases are recorded in the results of operations
as incurred.

414  Accounts payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accruals are recognised as amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether
or not billed to the Group.

4.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprising Interest and related costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred, except for borrowing costs relating to the acquisition of tangible fixed assets that are incurred during the
period of construction and installation of the assets (even period of construction is less than 12 months), which are
capitalised as a cosi of the related assets.

Transaction costs related to the issuance of bonds are amortized over the term of the bonds on a straight-line basis in
the consolidated financial statements. At initial recognition, bond Issuance costs are deducted from the principal
amount of the bonds.

4.16 Provisions for liabilities

Provisions for liabilities are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
from a past event and It is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured
at the management's reliable estimated of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision shall be the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settie the obligation,

417 Employee benefits

The Group participates in the compulsory defined contribution plans as required by the Government of Vietnam
pursuant to current Vietnamese regulations on labour, employment and relevant areas, which have been managed by
Vietnam Social Insurance through its local agencies. The compulsory defined contribution plans include social
insurance, health insurance and unemployment insurance which should be paid {o the local social insurance agency
by the Group for the Company's obligations, and on behalf of participants for participants’ obligations.

Participants, the calculations, declarations and payments for obligations for both the Group and paricipants are based
on the prevailing regulations specified to each period of time. The Group has no further obligation to fund the-post
employment benefits of its employees.

The Group does not participate in any defined benefit plans.

4.18 Bonus and welfare fund

Bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from the Group's net profit after tax and subject to approval of the Board of
Management.

418 Equity

Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued,

Share premium
Share premium arising from the issuance of shares is recognized as share premium. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the issuance of shares are deducted from the share premium, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent the Group’s accumulated results of operations (profit, loss) after corporate income tax at
the balance sheet date.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Investment and development fund
Investment and development fund is set aside to serve the expansion of operations and in-depth investment of the
Group.

4.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend of the Group is recognised as a liability in the Group's interim consolidated financlal statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

4.21 Revenue

Revenue from long-term lease of land and infrastructure on industrial parks land

Revenue from long-term leasing of land and infrastructure on industrial parks land is recognized at a point of time
when the Group has transferred the majority of risks and benefits associated with ownership of the asset to the
lessee and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of factories
Revenue from sale of factories is recognised when the Group has transferred significant risks and rewards associated
with the factories to the buyer and revenue can be reliably measured,

Revenue from lease of factories
Revenue from lease of factories under operating lease of factories Is recognised in the separate income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Revenue from rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when services have been provided to the customers, and the
outcome of the contract can be reliably measured.

Gain from transfer of real estate properties
Gain from transfer of real estates is determined when the majority of risks and rewards associated with ownership of
the real estate have been transferred to the buyer,

Gain from transfer of investment and trading of securities

Galn from transfer of investment and trading of securities is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and cost of the securilies and/or investment held by the Group. Gain is recorded on the trade date, which is when the
contract becomes effective.

Dividends
Income is recognised when the Group's entitlement as an investor to receive the dividend is established.

Interest income and lending

Interest income and lending is recognised in the statement of income on a time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

4,22 Cost of land lease, infrastructure lease, and real estate transfer

Cost of long-term lease of land and infrastructure includes all direct costs that are attributable to the development of
land and infrastructure and other overhead costs allocated on a reasonable basis to such aclivities including:

- All costs incurred for land and land development activities;

- All costs incurred for construction and construction related activities;

- Mandatory and non-saleable costs associated to development activities that would be incurred on existing
and future land and infrastructure of the project such as common infrastructure, mandatory land reserve for
public facilities.

4.23 Current and deferred income tax

Liabilities and/or Current income tax assels comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate based on the taxable profit for the year, All
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changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a companent of lax expense in the Interim consolidated
statement of income.

Deferred income tax Is calculated using the liability method base on temparary differences. This method compare the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet with their respective tax bases. In addition, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits to the Group are assessed for recognition as deferred
tax assets.

Deferred tax liabilities are always provided in full. Deferred income tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities is determined, without discounting, at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to their respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Most of changes in deferred income tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the
statement of income. Only changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to a change in value of assets or
liabilities that is charged directly to equity are charged or credited directly to equity,

4.24  Eamnings per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders, after
appropriafions to the bonus and welfare funds, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding as
if all potential dilutive ordinary shares had been converied.

4.25 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to comman control or commeon significant influence, Related parties can
be enterprises or individuals, Including close members of their families.

4.26 Segment reporting

A segment is a component which can be separately identified in which the Group takes part in providing the sale of
relevant goods or services (segment divided by business operation activities), or providing the sale of goods or services
within a particular economic environment (segment divided by geographic regions), each of which is subject to risks
and and returns that are different from those of other segments.

Real estate business activities within Vietnam and utility services are the primary sources of revenue and profit for the
Group, whereas other business activities account for a small proportion of the Group's total revenue. Thus, the Group's
management is of the view that the Group operates in only one business segment which is to trade in real estates and
provide related support services. The Group operates only in the territory of Vietnam. Accordingly, the Group does not
present segmental information,

4.27 Contingent events
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits Is remate.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
4.28 Subsequent events

Period events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the balance sheet date (adjusting
events) are reflected in the Interim consolidated financial statements. Period events that are not adjusting events are
disciosed in the notes when material.
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428  Classifying assets and liabilities into short-term or long-term

Assets and liabilities are clagsified as current or non-current on the balance sheet based on their remaining term of
such assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, except the classification is pre-defined and/or specified in
Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises.

430  Off-balance sheet items

Amounts which are defined as off-balance sheet items under the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises are
disclosed in the relevant notes to these Interim consclidated financial statements.

b. Significant transactions during the period

Acquisition of additional shares in Hung Yen Investment and Development Group Corporation

During the period, the Company and Saigon — Hal Phong Industrial Park Corporation and Kinh Bac Office and Factory
Business One Member Company Limited, subsidiaries of the Company, completed the acquisition of 261,800,000
shares, 136,800,000 shares, and 110,000,000 shares, respectively, of Hung Yen Investment and Development Group
Corporation in accordance with the Board of Management's Resolution Mo, 2506.7/2025/KBC/HQ-HDQT. Accordingly,
the Group's ownership interest in Hung Yen Investment and Development Group Corporation increased from 93.83%
to 96.28%. This transaction also increased the Group's ownership interest in Hung Yen Hospitality Services Joint Stock
Company, a subsidiary of Hung Yen Investment and Development Group Corporation, from 92.05% to 94.35%.

Capital contribution to establish Tan Phu Trung — Tay Ninh Industrial Park One Member Company Limited
During the period, Northwest Saigon City Development Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company, contributed capital
to establish Tan Phu Trung — Tay Ninh Industrial Park One Member Company Limited, with a charter capital of VND200
billion. This company was incorporated under Enterprise Registration Cedificate No. 3801355243 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Tay Ninh Province on 24 February 2025, As al 30 June 2025, the Group's
voting rights and ownership interest in this subsidiary were 100% and 72.82%, respectively,

Acquisition of additional shares in Salgon — Bac Glang Industrial Park Corporation

During the period, Trang Cat Urban Development One Member Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
completed the acquisition of 2,550,000 shares of Saigon — Bac Giang Industrial Park Corporation in accordance with
the Board of Management' Resolution No. 1712.3/2024/KBC/NQ-HDAT. Accordingly, the Group's ownership interest
in Salgon — Bac Giang Industrial Park Corporation increased from 88 96% to 96.46%.

Acquisition of shares in Saigon - Hue Investment Corporation

During the period, Trang Cat Urban Development One Member Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
completed the acquisition of 13,113,700 shares of Saigon — Hue Investment Corporation in accordance with the Board
of Management 's Resolution No. 1712.1/2024/KBC/NQ-HDQT. As at 30 June 2025, the Group's veting rights and
ownership interest in this associate were both 37.47%.

6.  Cash and cash equivalents

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

VYND WND

Cash on hand 65,204,082,127 31,403,093,658
Cash in banks 11,949,989,752,115 501,594.312,175
Cash equivalants {i} 6,123,722,633,070 6,033,038,768,672
18,138,916,467,312 6,566,036,174,506

iy Cash equivalents at 30 June 2025 comprise shori-term deposits in YND at banks, with terms ranging from 1
month to 3 months, earning interests from from 4% to 8% per annum (31 December 2024 from 1.6% to 5.1%

per annum).
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KinhBac City Development Holding Cerporation and its subsidiaries

[ Short-term investments
71 Trading Securities

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Cost Provision Cost Provision
WHND WYND YND WD

Short = term
Shares (i) 7,490,461,369  (6,772,454,269) 7.490,461,369  (6,756,345,419)
Other investmeants (i) 1,854,868,000,000 - 1,854 858,000,000 -
1,862,358,461,369 (6,772,454,269) 1 862 358 461,365 (6,756,845,419)
(i) As at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Company held 312,177 shares of Tan Tao Investment and

Industrial Joint Stock Company.

{ii) This is an investment in Lotus Hotel Development Sole Member Company Limited. The Group presents this
investment as a held-for-trading security as it plans to transfer this investment in short-term (Mote 24),

7.2 Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments comprise term deposits at commercial banks with a maturity of 12 months, bearing
interest rates ranging from 4.1% to 6% per annum (31 December 2024: from 4.1% to 6% per annum).

8. Short term trade accounts receivable

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Cost Provision Cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Kinh Bac Service Corparation 262,647,275,200 = 253,147,275.200 -
Foxconn Circuit Precision (Vietnam)
Company Limited 38,010,460,323 - 9E,053,124,6843 =
SSESTEEL LTD 90,367,087,300 (90,367,064,725) 90,367 087,300 (90,367,064,725)
Hai Duong = Hai Phong Development and
Investmant Joint Stock Company 762,733,928,773 = = -
Other trade raceivables 578,966,335,664 (15,917,303,225) 225079484 666 (15917,303,225)
Recelvables from related parties (Note 38) 53,680,000 - 6,232,210,000 -
1,722, 778,767,250 (106,284,367,950) 670,879,391,808 (106,284 367,850)
g. Short-term prepayment to suppliers
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND WND
Kinh Bac Investment and Consultant Carparation () 1,776,347,997,813 1,601,218,426 610
Kinh Bac Services Corporation (1) 2,110,380,615,120 1,387 456,605,039
Truong Son Waterproofing and Trade Construction Company Limited 500,000,000,000 -
TN Global Joint Stock Company 450,000,000,000 -
Mew Cily Design Consultant & Construction Joint Steck Campany 700,000,000,000 -
Vinh Hung Long An Joint Stock Company 300,000,000,000 -
Other prepayment to suppliars 557,580,431,400 471,344 266,975
Advances to prepayment parties (Note 39) 40,386,600,000 40,386,600,000
6,434,705,644, 333 3,500,405,899 524

(i) This balance represents advances for land clearance and compensation, and for construction works of certain
on-going projects of the Group. These prepayments o suppliers are secured by certain shares of real estale

comparny held by some related parties (Note 33) and other parties.

22



KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

10. Provision for doubtful debts
30 June 2025 31 Dacember 2024
Recoverable Recoverable
Cost amount Cost amaount
VND VND WND VMND
Short-term trade receivables 106,284,367 950 - 106,284 367,950 -
SSESTEELLTD 90,367,064,725 - B0,367 064,725 -
Lam Thinh Joint Stock Comparny 9,083,322,575 - 9,083,322 575 -
Viet Nhat Joint Stock Company 6,833,980,650 - 6,833,980.650 -
Other receivables from lending 500,000,000 - 500,000,000 -
Saigon Tour Corporation 500,000,000 - 500,000,000 -
106,784,367 ,850 - 108,784,367 850 -
11. Short-term loan receivables
30 June 2025 31 Decamber 2024
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Short - term VHND VND WMND WND
Loans recelvable fraom corporate counterparties (i) 1,637,710,814,775 (500,000,000) 1,499618,431 634 (500,000,000
Saigon — Hue Investment Corporation - - 328,090,000 000 -
Saigon — Can Tha Industrial Park Corporation 412,020,000,000 - 283,640,000,000 -
Saigon — Binh Dinh Power Corporaltion 260,000,000,000 - 260,000,000,000 -
Kinh Bac Services Corporalion 182,473,000,000 - 185,057,616 859 -
Saigan — Binh Thuan Power Plant Invastment and
Development JSC 127,259,178,083 - 127,258,178,083 -
Saigon = Ham Tan Tourism Corporation 377,352,000,000 - 76,852,000000 -
Evergreen Bac Glang investment Sustainable
Development Joint Stock Comparny 73,312,769,000 - 22032 769,000 -
Saigon Postel Corporation 59,654,658,304 - 37,523,191,925 -
Saigontel Senvice and Distribution Joint Stock Company 23,015,000,000 - 23,015000,000 =
Loans recaivable from other corporate counferparties 122,624,209,388 (500,000,000) 142 155675 767 (500,000,000)
Loans receivable from individual counterparties (i) 72,274,221,629 - T2274221 629 -
Mr. Hoang Van Cuong 60,000,000,000 - B0,000,000000 -
Loans receivable from other individual counterpartfies 12,274,221,629 B 12 274,221,629 -
Loans receivable from related parties (Note 35) 1,998,706,640,993 - 1,708 366,640,991 .
3,708,691,677,397 (500,000,000) 3,281,260,294,254 (500,000,000)
Lang - term {ii)
Salgon ~ Binh Dinh Power Corparation 478,407,865,995 - 528407 865,995 -
Kinh Bac Services Corporation . - 177.473,000,000 g
Loans receivable from other parties - - §1,280,000,000 -
Loans receivabla from related parties (Note 38) 86,000,000,000 - - -
563,407,865,995 - 757,180,865,995 =

4,272,099,543,392 (500,000,000) 4,038,421,160,249 (500,000,000}

{0 The balance of VND1,638 billion as at 30 June 2025 represents loans to corporale counterparties, maturing
before 30 June 2026, with interest rates ranging from 1% per annum to 12% per annum. Major of these loans
are secured by certain shares of some real estate companies held by some related parties (Note 38) and

other parties

(i) The balance of VND72.3 billion as at 30 June 2025 represents loans to individual counterparties, maturing
before 30 June 2026, with Interest rates ranging from 0% per annum to 10% per annum.

(i) The balance of YNDS563.4 billion as at 30 June 2025 represents loans to corporate counterparties, maturing
from May 2027 to December 2029, with interest rates ranging from 10.6% per annum to 11% per annum.
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12. Other receivables

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
WND YND

Short-term

Advances to amployees (i) 2,032,808,080,354 1,690,196,245 818

Mr. Mal Nho Twong 688,384,724,633 857,069,213,673

Mr. Phan Minh Toan Thu 196,780,372,831 196,543,207, 156

Mr. Dinh Van Luyen 108,092,890,879 -

Ms. Ngiryen Minh Chau 235,086,513,518 -

Other parties B04,463,578,435 536,583,824, 787

Deposits for acquisition of shares (i) - 1.197 250,000,000

Management Board of Duc Hoa District Investment and Construction Project (i) 34,885,547,235 999,211 187,724

Kinh Bac Services Corporation (Iv) 344,465,092,934 482,337,760,000

Interest receivables fram loans 212,414,484,298 317,518,083,152

Receivables from business cooperation contracts (v) 270,130,377,023 312,653,373,257

Long An Department of Finance (formerly Depariment of Planning and

Investment) {vi) 32.093,100,000 32,093,100,000

Other shori-term receivables £99,208,284,609 197,510,986 407

Other receivables from related parties (Note 39) 1,558,063,349,256 734,320,812,870

5,084,068,315,708 5,063,0891,548,126

Long-term

Receivables under investment cooperation contract with Lang Ha Investmant

Corpaoration (vil) 412,407,864,125 412,407 BB4,125

Other long-term recelvables 148,640,477,004 132,274,734,103

Dther receivables from related parties (Note 38) 32,643,493,150 63,713,424 657

593,691,834,279 608,396,022 885
5,677,760,1459,988 6,571,487,572,011

{i) Mainly advances to the Group's officers and employees for the purposes of land compensation, site clearance,
project due diligence, and other activities in line with the Group's operations.

(i) Includes deposits paid to counterparties for the acquisition of shares in several companies, the transactions of
which were completed during the period.

{iy ~ This represents an advance to the People's Committee of Duc Hoa District under the compensation, support,
and resettlement plan for the Loc Giang Industrial Park project.

(iv)  This represents a deposit for the acquisition of assets attached to leased land, including factories and office
buildings, in Que Vo and Trang Due industrial parks.

(v}  Comprises the Group's capital contributions under business cooperation contracts to invest in several industrial
cluster projects.

{vi) This represents a performance guarantee deposit to the Long An Depariment of Finance (formerly the
Department of Planning and Investment) for the implementation of the Phuoc Vinh Dong 2 Industrial Cluster
project and the Phuoc Vinh Dang 4 Industrial Cluster project.

{vii) In December 2023, the Company and Lang Ha Investment Corporation entered into an investment cooperation

contract and related memoranda of understanding to develop the “Project” — a commercial and office center
at 1A Lang Ha Street. Under this contract, the Company will contribute up to VNDS0O0 billion to invest in the
construction, business operations, and exploitation of the Project. The cooperation term between the parties is
five years from the contract signing date.
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13. Inventories

Trang Cat Urban Area and Services
Phue Minh Urban Area

Tan Phu Trung Industrial Park

Loc Giang Industrial Park

Men Town Social Housing

Mam Son — Hap Linh Industrial Park
Trang Due Seocial Housing

Trang Due Urban Area

Dang Le Industrial Clustar

Kim Dong Industrial Cluster

Chinh Mghla Industrial Cluster
Other projects

Cost
VND

15,814,705,148,217

1,123,078,517 427
973,274,404,348
1,435,884,789,591
1,003,982,653,020
741,086,484,802
§14,098,117,202
279,306,803,692
234,221,468,742
229,086,326,986
108,130,542,763
1,184,884,180,538

30 June 2025
Provision

Cost

VND

8,442 637722173
1,118,329,422,009
B884,142,101,887
58,385,285,024
773,332,297 639
674,702,179,625
332,221,286,628
285,119,288, 646
387,734,759,918
187,885,019,577
198,704,624 645
405,469,954,096

31 Decembear 2024

Provision

23,661,747 527,329

13,849,673,941,868

As at 30 June 2025, certain the Group's inventories were pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings as disclosed

in Mote 25,

14. Prepaid expenses

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND VND

Short-term
Commission on real estate transfer 79,267,199,640 62,542 862 687
Othar shori-tarm prepaid expenses 1,171,544,000 788,895,337
80,4338,743,640 63,331,758,024

Long-term
Repair and maintenance costs for infrastructure and factory facilities 24,145,014,308 26,403,685,863
Other long-term prepaid expenses 21,384,995,002 13,2003,775,463
45,530,013,310 38,607 441,326
125,968,756,950 102,939,199,350
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15. Tangible fixed assets

Buildings and  Machinary and Vehicles Office Others Total
struciures equipmeant equipmeant
{inciuding land
development and
infrastructure cosis)
WND VMDD WHND WND VND VND
Cost
1 January 2025 573,322 715,564 00502058301 182838411708 38880299914 1,323,109.090 886,965,484,578
Purchases - 342,020,000 4,979,650,000 40,800,000 - 5,362,570,909
Disposal - - - (40,000,000) - {40,000,000)
30 Juna 2025 573,322,715,564 00,024,078,301 187816,0682,618 38891,199,914 1,323,100,000 B92,288,065,487
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2025 {249,050,019,9798) (61,822,706,043) (20,103,571,682) (26,521,885,272) (1.323,100,090) {478,821,292,086)
Depreciation (20,057,1562,635) (4,336,839,630) (B,559208,7448) (2,111,268,534) - (35,064,548 548)
30 June 2025 (319,107,172,614) (BB,159,545,673) (98 662,B70,431) (26,633.143,808) (1,323,109,000) (513,885,841,614)
Carrying amount
1 January 2025 274,272,605585 28,770.252,258 92,732,840,027 12,368414,642 - 408,144,202,512
30 June 2025 254,215,542 050 24,775.432,628 88,153,192,187 10,258,056,108 - 37B402,223,873

As at 30 June 20285, certain tangible fixed assets, being bulldings and siructures were pledged as collateral for the
Group's borrowings as disclosed in Note 25. -"’_—\\

Cost of fully depreciated fixed assets as at 30 June 2025 which are still in use are approximately VND421 bi S
December 2024: approximately VND167.6 billion). /

16. Investment properties

Cost

1 January 2025 1,549,022,147,988
Disposal (48,897,514,800)
30 June 2025 1,600,124,633,188
Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2025 (256,737,878,382)
Depreciation (51,783,856,303)
Dizpasal 1,078,311,200
30 June 2025 (307,443 423 485)
Carrying amount

1 January 2025 1,292,284 269,606
30 June 2025 1,192,681,209,703

The Group's Investment properfies comprise faciories located in industrial parks held for operating lease purposes.

As at 30 June 2025, certain investment properties, being factories, were pledged as collateral for the Group's
borrowings as disclosed in Note 25,
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17. Construction in progress

30 June 2025 31 Decemnber 2024

VND WND

Hanoi Diplomatic Corps Area (1) 246,966,924,174 246,966,924,174
Water supply and wastewaler treatment system of Nam Son - Hap

Linh Industrial Park 173,314,474 628 166,218 656,815

Hung Yen Provincial Convention Center Project 72,958 586,048 72,776,574,048

Other construction in progress 380,794,284,951 245 369,133 544

874,034,279,801 731,331,293,581

(i) According to the infrastructure transfer contract No. 2592/2009/HANCORP-KBC dated 5 October 2009, Hanoi

Construction Corporation JSC transferred the infrastructure to the Group to facilitate the implementation of
the investment project for the construction of headquarers, representative offices, and international
organizations in Hanoi Diplomatic Corps Area.

18. Long-term investments

18.1 Investments in joint ventures and associates

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Voting Ownership Vaoting  Ownership

interest interest interest interast

% %o % %

Sai Gon = Da MNang Investment Corparation {f) 49.75% 49.75% 48.00% 48.00%

Sai Gon — Nhon Hol Industrial Park Corporation (i) 35.49% 35.49% 35.45% 35.45%

La Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Corporation (iil) 22.72% 22.72% 22.72% 22.72%

Saigan Telecommunication & Technologles Corparation (iv) 21.48% 21.48% 21.48% 21.48%

Saigontel Long An Company Limited {v) 22.32% 22.32% 22.32% 22.32%

Scanviwood Corporation (vi) 34.00% 34.00% 34.00% 34.00%

Salgon — Hue Investment Corporation (vil) ITATH% ITAT%h - -
i Saigon - Da Nang Investment Corporation

Saigon - Da Nang Investment Corporation is established and operated under the Enterprise Registration Certificate

No. 0400503777 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Da Nang City, with a registered charter

capital of YND200 billion. The main activity according to the Business Registration Certificate of this company is to

trade in real estate, industrial park infrastructure, land use rights of the owner, the user or the lessee,
Its head office Is at 1A Nguyen Van Cu Street, Hai Van Ward, Da Nang City, Vietnam.,

i) Saigon - Nhon Hoi Industrial Park Corparation

Saigon - Nhon Hol Industrial Park Corporation is established and operated under the Business Registration Cerificate
No. 4100579765 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Binh Dinh province, with a registered charter
capital of YND1,200 billion. The main activity according to the Business Registration Cerificate of this company is to
trade in real estate, industrial park infrastructure, land use rights of the owner, the user or the lessee,

Its head office is at Lot AZ-01, N3 Street, Nhon Hai Industrial Park — Zone A, Quy Nhon Dong Ward, Gia Lal Province,
Vietnam.

{ii) Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Corporation

Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Corporation operates under Enterprise Registralion Certificate No.
0311757628 issued by the Depariment of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, with charter capital of
\'ND458,125 hillion. The company's main business activities are real estate project development and trading land use
rights under ownership, usage rights, or lease,

Its head office is at 20 Phung Khac Khoan Street, Tan Dinh Ward, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
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fiv) Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation

Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation was established under the Business Registration Cedificate
Mo. 0302615063 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh city with a registered charter
capital of YND1,480 billion. The main activities according to the Company’s Business Registration Certificate include
trading computer, electronic equipment, materials, telecommunication and post equipment; trading and installation of
transmission equipment, connection, security equipment for communication; information technology consulting;
designing and installation of computer system; constructing industrial park, leasing warehouses, factories,

Its head office is at Lot 46, Quang Trung Software City, Trung My Tay Ward, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

fv) Saigontel Long An Company Limited

Saigontel Long An Company Limited is registered under the Business Registration Cerfificate No. 1101977241 issued
by the Department of Planning and Investment of Long An Province, with a registered charter capital of VND700 billion.
The main activity according to the Business Registration Certificate of this company is to trade in real estate, land use
rights of the owner, the user or the lessee.

Its head office is at Tan Dong Hamlet, Tan Tap Commune, Tay Ninh Province, Vietnam.

{vi) Scanviwood Corporation

Scanviwood Corporation was established pursuant to the Business Registration Cerlificate Mo. 0301213033 issued
by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, with a registered charter capital of YND31.89
billion. The main activity according to the Business Registration Certificate of this company is manufacturing of
household products for export.

Its head office is at 565 An Duong Vuong Street, An Lac Ward, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

{vii) Safgon — Hue Investment Corporation

Saigon — Hue Investment Corporation is registered to operate under Business Registration Certificate No. 3300512389
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hue City, with charter capital of YND350 billion. According to
ils Business Registration Certificate, the company’s principal activities are investing, constructing, and operating
infrastructure within and outside industrial parks, residential-urban areas, reselilement areas, and worker housing
areas, and constructing industrial, civil, and transport works.

lts head office Is at Tay Cang Chan May, Chan May — Lang Co Commune, Hue City, Vietnam.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

18.2 Other long-term investments

30 June 2025 31 Dacember 2024
ownership Number Carrying Fair ownership Number of Fair
interest of shares amount wvalus  interest shares Carrying amount  value
b VND % VMND
Saigan - Quy Mhon Mining
Corparation (i) 6.90 7,590,000 339,000,000,000 6.90 7,580,000 339,000,000.000
VTC - Saigontel Media
Caorporation 19.19 3,070,020 30,700,200,000 (i) 19.19 3,070,020 30,700,200,000 (i)
Salgon Invesiment
Carparation 0.67 1,000,000 25,000,000,000 (i) 0.67 1,000,000 25,000,000000 (Tiy
Salgon - Binh Phuoc
Industrial Park Corparation (i) 0.59 10,693 1,069,300,000 (i)} 10.56 190,000 19,000,000,000 (i)
Salgon - Ham Tan Tourism
Corparation 1.63 70,000 7,000,000,000 (i) 1.63 70,000 7,000,000,000 (I}
Saigon - Binh Thuan Power
Plant Investment and
Development Carporation 0.35 350,000 3,500,000,000 (i) 0.35 350,000  3,500,000,000 (i)
Saigon - Long An Industrial
Park Corporation 0.15 30,000 300,000,000 (i} 0.15 30,000 300,000,000 (i)
406,569,500,000 424,500,200,000
Provision for long-term invesiment
davaluation (1,348,074,922) (1,348,074,922)
Mat value 405,221,425,078 423,152,125,078

{1 In December 2024, the Company received a deposit for the transfer of its entire ownership in this company as
disclosed in Mote 24. As at 30 June 2025, the Company is in the process of transferring these shares.

(iy ~ During the period, the Company liguidated pari of its investment of Saigon - Binh Phuoc Industrial Park,
Accordingly, the Group's voting interest and ownership interest in this Company decreased to 0.59%.

(i) The Group has not been able to collect necessary information to determine the fair value of the shares held in

these companies,

19. Short-term trade account payables

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Recoverable Recoverabla
Amount amount Amount amount
VND VND VND VHND

Short-term trade payables to third parties
Licogl 13 Joint Stock Company 395,771,170,113 385771170113 302812618610 302812618610
Truong Phat Invesiment Joint Stock Company 25,609,748,960 25,609,748,960  41,938057 B850 41,938,057 850
HP Land Real Estate Business Joint Stock Company  13,019,970,116  13,019,970,115 13,019.870,115  13,019,870,115
Wan Lol Phat Investment Joint Stock Company 11,236,444, 847 11,236,444 B4T 5,682,008,346 5,682 098,346
Cong Thanh Envirenmeant - Technelogy Co.,Lid 6,806,908,257 6,806,908,257 14,208,502, 734  14,208,592,734
Payables to related parties (Note 38) 6,342,667,689 6,342,567,689 7.110,418,073 7.110,418,073
Other suppliers 267,454, 425,070 267,454,425070 144 710453,381 144,710,453,381
726,241,235,061 726,241,235,061 520,481,109,108 529,481,109,109
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KinhBac City Development Helding Corporation and its subsidiaries

20. Short-term advances from customer

Advances for purchase of apartments in social housing and

commercial housing projects

Advances for land lease at Tan Phu Trung |ndustrial Park
Including:

Green Vista Joint Stock Company

Othar parties

Advances for deposits to purchase factarles

Others

30 June 2025
WND

B12,404,221,387
189,466,001,835

188,916,001,835
550,000,000
65,641,390,687
23,934,213,027

31 December 2024
VND

420,685,622,164
189,4686,001,835

188,916,001,835
550,000,000
120,807, 198,656
26,564,354,903

1,091,445,826,936

757,523,177.558

21. Taxes and amounts payable to the State Budget

31 December 2024 During the period 30 June 2025
Amount (Receivablel/ Payment/Meat off Amount
Payable

WND WND VND VND

Taxes receivable
Corporate income tax B0 47T 240,006 3,980,000,000 (16,960,126,268) 67,497 113,737
Other tax 1,451,652, 898 - (1,000,000) 1,450,652,898
81,928,882,904 3,980,000,000 {16,961,126,268) 68,947,766,635

Taxes payable

Value added tax - 263,384,798 425 {39,780,814,785) 223,603,983,640
Corporate Income tax 203,341,667 697 394,548,713,033 {189,301 482,008) 408,538,898,722
Personal incomas tax 1,243,612,134 12,688,845 058 (12,337,478,123) 1,584 978,109
Other tax E,645,744,174 19,129,970,510 (5,662,381,426) 19,113,333,258
210,231,024,005 689,752,327 066 (247 0B2,157,342) 662,901,193,729

22. Capitalised borrowing costs

During the period, the Group capitalised borrowing costs totaling VNDS76 billion. These boarrowing costs relate lo
specific borrowings used for the investment and development Nam Son - Hap Linh Industrial Park, Phuc Ninh Urban
Area, Trang Due Industrial Park and Urban Area, Trang Cat Urban Area, and other basic construction investment

praojects of the Group.

23. Accrued expenses

30 June 2025 31 Decamber 2024
VND WND

Short-term
Accrued construction and infrastructure development costs, and 2,640,337,004,066 2,030,121,527 881

construction costs for real estale already handed over

Accrued land rental 110,716,256,089 72,728,051 867
Interest expenses and bond interest payable to other parties 605,052,562,939 63,067 273,742
Other accrued expansas 35,044,529,373 30,877 418,420
3,391,150,352,467 2,205,794,271,910

Long-term
Interast payable to related parties (Note 39) - 580 879,723
- 580,879,723

b
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

24.  Other payables

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND VND

Short - term
Payabies for capital contribution transfers (i) 1,804,868,000,000 1,804, 868,000,000

Deposils received for parformance of real estate project contracts and long-

term industrial park leases (i) 1,003,143,477,239 887 445,164,270
Deposils recelved to secure contract performance (jii) §,650,000,000,000 -
Other payables 290,467,102,342 313,214,705,165
8,748,478,579,581 3,005,527 869,435

Long - term
Deposits recelved to secure contract performance (jii) - 5,650,000,000,000
Deposits recelved for share transfer {iv) 338,000,000,000 339,000,000,000
Vinatex — Tan Tao Invesiment Corporation (v) 2,353,000,000,000 -
Other payables 111,947 566,459 90,254,004 359
2,803,947,566,459 6,079,254,094 359
11,552,426,146,040 9,084,781,953, 794
(i) This is the payable to Tan Hoang Minh Co. Ltd under contract for the transfer of equity capital in Lotus Hotel

Development Sole Member Company Limited (Note 7.1).
These are mainly customer deposits to acquire transfers in real estate projects and deposits for leasing land
This is a deposit from Saigon - Ham Tan Tourlsm Corporation to ensure the signing and execution of the real

estate brokerage service contract for the Trang Cat Urban and Service Area Project. The deposit is valid until
20 February 20268, On 1 July 2025, the Group signed a Liquidation of the deposit agreement with Saigon - Ham

" and infrastructure at the Group's industrial park projects,

(i
Tan Tourism Corporation and refunded the entire deposil amount.

(iv)  Thisis a deposit from Kinh Bac Investment and Consultant Corporation for the transfer of all shares of Saigon
- Quy Nhon Mining Corporation (Note 18.2),

)

Investrment cooperation agreement with Vinatex — Tan Tao for the development of the Trang Due 3 Industrial
Park Project. Vinatex — Tan Tao transferred cooperation capital to Saigon — Hai Phong Industrial Park
Corporation, a subsidiary, to be used for advances/payments for site clearance, construction, development, and
aperation of the project. The contract term Is 84 months starting from the capital transfer date of 20 June 2025,
The cooperation profit is calculated based on the posi-lax profit of the Project muitiplied by the aclual
cooperation ratio.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

27. Share capital
Details of Share Capital:

30 June 2025 31 Dacambar 2024

Prafarred Preferred

Amount Common Shares Shares Amaunt Comman Sharas Shares

VND VND VND VND VND WND

Shareholder capital 9,417,547,690,000 9,417, ,547,500,000 - 7,676,047 580,000 7,676,047,590,000 -
contributed

Share premium 5,163,224 670,000 5,163,224,570,000 - 2.743,529 570,000 2 743,529,570,000 -

14,680,772,160,000 14,580,772,160,000 - 10,418,577,160,000 10,419,577,160,000 -

Transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits

Six-month period ended Six-month period ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
VND WND

Shareholder capital
Cpening balance 7,676,047,590,000 7,676,047 580,000
increase during the pariod 1,741,500,000,000 -
Closing balance 0,417, 547,500,000 7,676,047 ,590,000
Dividends and profit distributad = -

Shares lssued:

30 June 2025 31 Decamber 2024
Mumber of shares MNumber of shares
Number of registered shares 941,754,759 767,604,759
Mumber of shares sold to the public 941,754,759 767,604,758
- Comman shares 841,754,759 767,604,759
Mumber of shares outstanding 941,754,759 767,604,759
- Cannman shares 941,754,759 767,604,759

All comman shares have a par value of WND10,000, Each commaon share corresponds to one voling right at the
Company's shareholders' meetings. Shareholders are entitled to dividends as announced at the relevant times. All
common shares have equal ranking regarding the residual assets of the Company. In cases where the Company

repurchases shares, all rights will be suspended until the shares are reissued.

28. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit altributable to shareholders, after deducting the
appropriation to the bonus and welfare fund, by the weighted average number of commeon shares outstanding during

the period, excluding any common shares repurchased and held as treasury shares:

Six-month period Sht-month period

ended 20 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024

VND VND

Profit attributable to commion shareholders (VND) 1,187,940,7486,903 155,363,935,627
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 774,339,842 767,604,758
Basic earnings per share 1,634 202
Diluted earnings per share 1,534 202

Mo transactions involving common shares or potential preferred shares occurred between the end of the interim
consolidated accounting period and the date of completion of this interim consolidated financial report.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiarles

29. Non-controlling interests

Six-month period Six-month period

ended 30 June 2025 anded 30 June 2024

VND WND

Opening balance 2,087,017,420,423 2,044 908,107 552

Profit attributable to non-contralling interests 62,677,843,647 40,421,379, 746

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries (354,344,953,928) -

Closing balance 1,795,350,310,142 2,085,329 487,298
30. Revenue

Six-month period Six-month period

ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024

WND WMND

Revenue from land and infrastructure leasing (") 2,958,241 404 864 £31,526,593,408

Revenue from supplying clean waler, electricity, service fees, and 208,598,103,463 195,362,299 846

wastewaler treatment

Revenue from leasing warehouses, factories, and offices
Revenue from real estate transfers

Other revenue

Revenue deductions

112,908,739,676
411,566,711,123
120,682,112

91,366,717,333
225,195,989,666
587 440,000

3,691,424,841,238

1,044,059,040,253

(0] During the period, the Group recognized revenue from the subleasing of land with infrastructure at industrial
zones in the interim consolidated statement of profit or loss when the land was handed over to customers,
based on the assessmeant that the majority of risks and rewards associated with ownership of the land plots
had been transferred to the lessees. If revenue from subleasing land with infrastructure were allocated over
the land lease term, the impact on the Group's revenue, cost of sales and services, and gross profit from

sales and services would be as follows:

ended 30 June 2025

Case where revenue

Six-month period Six-month period
endad 30 June 2024

Case whare Case where revenua Case whare
revanue [s is recognized in a revenus is

is recognized ina

lump sum at the allocated over the
time of land  land lease term

handover
VND
Met revenue from goods sold and services 3,691,424,641,238 B36,607,134,783
rendered
Inetuding:

Revenue from leasing land and infrasiructure
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

2,958,241, 404,864

16,994,956,091
(1,898,311,250,286) (572,894,464 857)

VHD

531,526,593 408
(505,507,373,188) (344,077,040,179)

lurip sum at the time  allocated over the
of land handover  land lease term

VND VND
1,044,059,040,253 524,135677,111

7,182,791,803

Grass profit from goods sold and services
renderad

1,793,113,390,952  263,712,669,936

538 551,667,065 180,058,636932

a“

P



KinhBae City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

31. Costof sales

Six-month perlod

Six-month period

ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024
VND WHD
Cost of leasing land and infrastructure 1,370,927,240,871 167,779,822 405
Cost of providing clean water, electricity,
service fees, and wastewater treatment a7.481,250,035 92,400,554 ,604
Cost of leasing warehouses, factories, and offices 54,322 492,685 46,410,998,892
Cost of real estate transfers 364,246,991,635 198,915,987 2687
Other cost nfgmds soid 42,776,547 -
1,887,020,751,783 505,507,373,188
32. Income from financial activities
Six-month period Slx-month period
ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024
YHD WVHD
Interest income from bank deposits, loans, and business cooperation 208,351,123,427 173,782,060,271
Other Incomea from financial activities 47,959,070 3,336,035,918
298,399,082,487 177,118,086,188
33. Expenses from financial activities
Six-month period Six-manth pariod
ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024
VND WHND
Interest expense, bond interest expense 206,922,011,604 101,437,384 163
Allocation of bond issuance costs 9,875,000,000 -
{Revert)/Provision for impairment of financial investments (132,558,419} 383,977,710
Other financial expense 7,883,114 467 6,230,444 438
224, 647 667 662 108,051,806 311

34. Selling expense

Six-month period Six-month perod
ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 Jupe 2024
VND VND
Sales advisory and brokerage fees 43,118,754,331 45,853,276,291
Labour cost 3,369,003,666 3,810,389 666
Others 4,096,040,273 2,899,003,786
50,583,798,270 52 562,669,843

35. General and administrative expenses
Six-month period Six-month pericd
ended 20 June 2025 ended 30 Juna 2024
VND VND
Labour cost 93,419,875,200 85,982 476,174
Outside senvices cost 76,118,087,052 38,724 35211
Depreciation 12,857,765,824 12,648,240,736
Financing cosls 28,259,762,132 46,775,103,352
DOthers 35,382,914,169 43.418,363,338
246,038,404,377 227.549,635,731
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

36. Production and operation costs by element

Six-month period Six-month period

ended 20 June 2025 anded 30 June 2024

VND VND

Cos&l of leasing land, infrastructure and sarvices 11,040,890,656,838 a91,372,137,558
Labour cost 96,788,878,866 94,054 860 840
Depraclation and amortisation £6,870,630,853 79,443 850,511
Outside service cost 45,223 967,354 144,711,038,305
Other costs 67,738,716,674 100,718,016,793

11,337,512,859,485

1,410,299 904,007

37. Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate (“CIT") applicable to the Group is 20% of taxable profit, except for the following cases:

L] For the land lease and infrastructure operations at Trang Due Industrial Park — Phase 2, Saigon — Hai Fhong
Industrial Park Joint Stock Company is subject to a CIT rate of 10% for 15 years from the commencement of
business operations. The Company was exempt from CIT for 4 years from 2015 to 2018 and is entitled to a 50%
reduction in payable tax for the following 9 years. The applicable tax rate for this period is 10%, with a 50%

reduction applied.

® For investment and social housing business operations at the Evergreen Bac Giang Social Housing Project and
the Trang Due — Hai Phong Social Housing Project, Saigon — Hai Phong Industrial Park Joint Stock Company

is subject to a CIT rate of 10% for this period for these operations.

Corporate income tax expense for the period is as follows:

Six-month period Six-month period

ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024

VND VND

Corporate income tax expenses 411,512,640,083 145,541,981, 828
Defarred corporale income tax (Income)expense (5,259,374,063) 8,483, 522,640
406,253,166,040 154,025,504 468

Reconciliation of corporate income tax expense and the result of accounting profit before tax multiplied by the corporate

income tax rate is as follows:

Six-month period

Six-month period

ended 30 June 2025 ended 30 June 2024
VND VND
Accounting profit before tax 1,656,871,756,680 349,810,819,841
Corporate income tax calculated at 20% rate 331,374,351,336 659,962,163,968
Effects of:
MNon-deduciible axpenses 11,336,615,901 14,833,368, 760
interest expense exceading the fimit under Decree No. 132/2020/ND-CP £8,097,564,300 48,103,713,271
Deferred tax assels nofl recognized refated o lax losses 5,485,290,838 170,483,462
Adjustment for revenua recognized in a single perfod but allocated for tax (8,742,052,592) (8,483,522,640)
purposes over mulliple years
Adjustments for gainsiosses recorded in the consolidated financial {8,080,173,395) -
statements
Adjustments due to different tax rates of subsidiaries 18,834,922,082 47,892,219,349
Other adjusiments (756,063,671) -
Tax losses carmed forward from pricr years (6,037,914,706) (26,936, 444,342)

Current corporate income tax expenses

411,512,540,083

145,541,981,828

43
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KinhBac City Development Helding Corporation and its subsidiaries

The calculation of corporate income tax also depends on the inspection and approval of the tax authorities.

Tax losses

The tax losses can be carried forward to offset taxable income in the following years for a maximum of § years from
the date the loss was incurred. The total amount of losses that can actually be carried forward depends on the results
of tax inspections by the local tax authorities. The tax losses available for offsetting against taxable income in future
years are calculated as follows:

Losses not yet

carried forward as of
Year/Period Tax losses Losses utilized Expired losses 30 June 2025 Expiration year
VND VND VND VND VND
2019 53,562,817 ,851 (53,548,750,843) (14,067,108) ¥ 2024
2020 7,926,190 ¥ - 7,926,190 2025
2021 262,126,618 - - 262,126,619 2028
2022 656,052,547,222 {595,839,934 679) - 69,212,612,543 2027
2023 1,596,487,899 - - 1,596,487 828 2028
2024 8,412, 445384 - - 8,412,445, 384 2029
Current period £3,597,171,992 - - 53,607,171,992 2030

782,491,623,257 (549,388,685,522) (14,067,108) 133,088,770,627

The Group has not recognized any deferred tax assets for the above cumulative losses because it is not currently
possible to reliably estimate future taxable profits.

Excess interest expense

According to the guidance in Decree 132/2020/ND-CP, the Group is allowed to carry forward inlerest expenses that
are not deductible for corporate income tax purposes ("non-deductible interest expenses”) to future periods when
determining the total deductible interest expense. The carryforward period for these interest expenses is continuous
and cannol exceed 5 years from the year in which the non-deduclible interest expense was incurred.

As at the end of the financial period, the Group has cumulative non-deductible interest expenses available for
carryforward as follows:

Non-deductible

Non-deductible interest Expired non- interest expenses not
Mon-deductible expenses carried forward deductible interest yet carrled forward as Expiration
Year/Pariod interest expenses as of 30 June 2025 axpanses of 30 June 2025 year
VND VND VND VND VND
2019 99,566,0689,293 (64,564,170,9885) (35,001,898,307) - 2024
2020 143,934,594, 578 (6,082,174,800) - 137,852 419,778 2025
2021 258, 471,566,048 (32,229,131,838) - 226,242,434,210 2026
2022 267,036,726,910 - - 267,036,726,910 2027
2023 308,755,266,535 - * 308,755,266,535 2028
2024 347,873,678,325 - = 347 973,678,335 2029
Current period 340,487 821,502 - - 340,487 821,502 2030

1,766,225,723,201 {102,875,477,624) (35,001,898,307) 1,628,348,347,270

These are the non-deductible interest expenses estimated based on the Group's tax filings, which have not yet been
finalized by the local tax authorities as of the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements. The Group
has not recognized any deferred tax assets for the above non-deductible interest expenses because it is not currently
possible to reliably estimate fulure taxable profits and future interest expenses at this time,
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

38. Deferred corporate income tax

Deferred corporate income tax assets and deferred corporate income tax liabilities are offset when the Company has
a legally enforceable right to offset current corporate income tax assels against current corporate income tax
liabilities, and when the deferred corporate income tax relates to the same tax authority and the same taxable entity,
The details of the main deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are offset against balances related to the same tax
autherity, and their movements are presented as follows:

Interim consclidated Interim consolidated

balance sheet income statement

Six-month period  Six-month period

ended ended

30 June 2025 31 December 2024 30 June 2025 30 June 2025
VND VD VND VND

Deferred iIncome tax liabilities

Deferrad income tax arising from the 94 649,657,352 91,645 226,758 3,004,430,594 -
revaluation of assets at fair value from the date

of business combination

Deferred Income tax arising from the allocation  1,034,674,621,123 1,042,938,425 760 (8,263,804,647) 8,483,522 640
of taxable Inceme from land and infrastructure

leases In industrial parks over time

Deferred tax expensef{incoma) 1,129,324,278,475 1,134 583,652 527 {5,259,374,053) 8,483,522 640

39. Related party transaction and balances

Besides members of Board of Management, Board of Supervisors and Board of Directors as presented in Page 1, the
list of related parties that had transactions during the perriod and/or had receivables/payables with the Company as at
30 June 2025 is as follows:

STT Related party Relationship i

1 Saigon Teleocommunication & Technologies Corparation Associate -

2 Saigontel Long An Company Limited Associate .

3 Saigon — Nhon Hol Industrial Park Corparation Associate

4 Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investmeant Corporation Associate

5 Saigon — Da Nang Investment Corporation Associate

6 Saigon - Hue Investment Corporation Associate

- Salgon Hi-tech Park Infrastructure Development and Investment Entity with key management personnel in common
Corporation

8 Vinatex — Tan Tao Investment Corporation Entity with key management personnel in common

a Vung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company Enlity with key management personnel in common

10 Saigontel Real Eslate Investment Joint Stock Company Subsidiary of affiliated company

1" Da Mang - Long An Investment One Member Company Limited Subsidiary of affiliated company

12 Kumba Corporation Entity with key management personnel in commaon

13 tir. Mai Tuan Dung General Director of Subsidiary

14 Mr. Wu Thanh Duong Deputy General Director of Subsidiary

15 Mr. Mguyen Hoang Ky Lan Member of Board of Directors of Subsidiary



KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

During the period, the following significant transactions with related parlies were recognised:

Six-month period Six-month period

related parties Mature of transactions ended 30 June 2025 ended 20 June 2024

VND WND

Mr Vu Thanh Ducng Recovery of advance payment - 280,500,000,000

Advance payment 286,742,000,000 1,302,000,000

Interest on advance payment 3,494 612,575 7.560,234,904

Saigon - Mhon Hoi Industrial Park Carporation Recovery of loan principal - 100,000,000,000

Interest receivable on loans 12,081,130,138 4,192,000,002

Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Recovery of loan principal - 86,300,000,000

Corporation Lending . 34,500,000,000

Interest receivabla on loans 104,081,417,438 24,063,022,376

Receipt of loan interest 16,100,000,000 3,410,835,618

Saigontel Long An Co., Lid Lending £9,100,000,000 62,000,000,000

Interest receivable on loans 2.547,589,042 4,303,249,315

Salgon Hi-tech Park Infrastructure Development  Repayment of loan principal 30,000,000,000 -

and Investment Corparation Loan Interest 9,000,000 -

Paymant of loan interest 508,879,723 -

Mr, Dang Thanh Tam Advance payment 60,989,500,000 16,405,500,600

Recovery of advance payment 614,933,168 1,899 999,596

Saigon — Da Nang Investment Corporation Interest recaivabla on loans 4,141,743,335 8,374 435475

Transfer for loan dishursement 7,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

Mr Mai Tuan Dung Advance paymeani 16,627,747 680 3,058,293 455

Recovery of advance payment 16,500,000 -

Vinatex — Tan Tao Investment Corporation Capital contribution to joint 353,000,000,000 -
business

Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Interest recelvable on loans 84,301,370 -

Corporation

Saigon — Hue Investmeant Corporation Interest receivable on loans 2,761,861,642 -

Lending 332,540,000,000 -

Vung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company  Interest receivable on |loans 1,121,952,054 -

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

A certaln of short-term customer receivables, advances to suppliers, loan receivables and other receivables with
corporate partners are secured by certain shares of a real estale company held by related parties. Cerain loan
receivables and advances to individuals are guaranteed for payment by related parties,

The Group's transactions with related parties are conducted based on contractual agreements.

The majority of loan receivables from related parties as of 30 June 2025 are secured by assets; payables and
borrowings as of 30 June 2025 are unsecured and will be seitied in cash, For the six-month period ended 30 June
2025, the Group has not recognized any allowance for doubtful debts related to amounts owed by related parties (31
December 2024: nil). This assessment is conducted annually through evaluation of the related party’s financial capacity
and the market in which the related party operates.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had outstanding balances with related parties:

Related party Mature of balance 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND WND

Short-term trade accounts receivable (Note 8)
Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Short-term receivable 53,680,000 -

Carporation

Others Short-term receivable - 6,232,210,000
53,680,000 6,232,210,000

Short-term prepayments to suppliers (Nofe 8)
Saigontel Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company  Advance payment for service 40,386,600,000 40,386,600,000

fees

40,386,600,000 40,386,600,000

Loan receivables (Note 11) (i)

Short - term

Saigon Telecommunication & Technalogies
Corporation

Loan receivables

610,158,758,390

631,258,758,390

Saigon - Hue Investment Corporation Loan receivables 332,540,000,000 -
Saigontel Long An Ce,, Lid Loan recelvables 106,200,000,000 50,000,000,000
Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Corporation  Loan receivables 1,700,000,000 1,700,000,000
Saigon - Da Nang Investment Corporation Loan receivables 127,621,929,896  205,521,629,893
Saigon - Nhon Hol Industrial Park Corperation Loan receivables 461,450,000,000 461 450,000,000
Mr Nguyen Hoang Ky Lan Loan receivables 232 480,000,000 232 460,000,000
Saigontel Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company  Loan receivables £1,725,952,708 81,725,852 708
Vung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company Loan receivables 45,250,000,000 45,250,000,000

1,998,706,640,993

1,709,366,640,991

Long - term
Salgon — Da Nang Investment Corporation Loan receivables 85,000,000,000 -
Other recalvables (Note 12)
Short - term
Mr Wy Thanh Dueong Advance 608,182,924,979 313,846,312 404
Da Nang - Long An Investment One-Member Company  Receivables from joint 122,500,000,000 123,747 835816
Limited ventures
Mr Mai Tuan Dung Advance 134,128,425290 117,517,177810
Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation  Interest receivable 127,954,058,131 28,644 471,970
Recelvablas from joint 190,381,683 21,874.460,071
ventures
Saigon — Nhan Hoi Industrial Park Corporation Interest receivable 38,445,712,330 27,364 582,192
Receivables from |oint - 14,732,000,000
ventures
Salgon — Da Nang Investment Corporation Interest receivable 23,813,371,330 47,889,200,227
‘finatlex — Tan Tao Investment Corparation Interest racaivabla 353,000,000,000 -
Others Other recaivables 147 848,475,513 3B,604 673,880
1,568,063,349,256 734,320,812 870
Long - term
Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Intarest receivable - 63,713,424 657
Corporation
Saigon — Da Mang Investment Corporation Interest receivable 32,643,493,150 -
32,643,493,150 63,713,424 657
Trade account payables (Note 15)
Salgon Telecommunication & Technologies Trade account payables 26,763,000 -
Corporation
Saigontel Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company  Trade account payables 6,315,804 689 7.110,418,073
6,242,567 ,682 7.110,418,073

47

N =

T I AP



KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

Related party Mature of balance 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
VND WHND
Long — term accrued expenses (Note 23)
Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Interest payables - 589,879,723
Corporation
Borrowing (Note 25)
Kumba Corporation Short - term borrowing - 8,500,000,000
Salgon Hi-tech Park Infrastructure Development and Long — term borrawing
Investment Corporation - 30,000,000,000
- 38,500,000,000
{i) Details of borrowings to related parties:
Related parties 30 June 2025 Maturity datelnterast rate (%iyear)
Short - term loan receivables VND
Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies 610,158,758,390 February 2026 1%-8%
Caorporation
Saigon — Hue Investment Corporation 332,540,000,000 November to 5% - 12.5%
December 2025
Saigontel Long An Co., Ltd 105,800,000,000 25 Movemnber 2025 5%
Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Corporation 1,700,000,000 29 May 2026 10%
Saigon — Da Nang Investment Corporation 127,621,929.895 December 2025 o B%-12%
January 2026
Salgon — Nhon Hai Industrial Park Corporation 461,450,000,000 Movember (o 5%-8%
December 2025
Mr Mouyen Hoang Ky Lan 232,460,000,000 23 August 2025 8%
Saigontel Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company 81,725,952,708 30 September 2025 B%
Yung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company 45,260,000,000 MNovember 2025 to 5%
January 2026
1,998,706,640,9083
Long - term loan receivables
Saigon — Da Nang Investment JSC 85,000,000,000 May 2027 10.5%
31 Decembar 2024
Short - term loan receivables VND
Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation 631,258,758,300 January to 1-11%
December 2025
Saigontel Long An Co., Lid §0,000,000,000 December 2025 5%
Le Minh Xuan 2 Industrial Park Investment Corporation 1,700,000,000 Movember to 5-8%
December 2025
Salgon — Da Nang Investmeant Corporation 206,521,929,893 April 2025 3%
Saigon — Mhon Hol Industrial Park Carporation 461,450,000,000 April to December B-12%
2025
Mr Mguyen Hoang Ky Lan 232 460,000,000  January to March 1-10%
2025
Saigontal Real Estate Investrment Joint Stock Company 81,725,952, 708 Movember 2025 5%
Yung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company 45,250,000,000 May 2025 10%

1,708,366,640,591

Major of these loans are primarily secured by certain shares of companies operating in the industrial real estate sector,
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

41. Commitments

411 Contingent liabilities and commitments related to real estate investment projects
Regarding the existing and expanded Que Vo Industrial Park projects:

From 2003 to 2024, the Company entered into land lease agreements with the People’s Committee of Bac Ninh
Province for the delivered land areas at the existing and expanded Que Vo Industrial Parks of 2,265,511.5 m? {until
2052) and 2,268,769.4 m? (until 2057), respectively. According to Official Letter No. 323/BTC-QLCS issued by the
Ministry of Finance on 12 January 2015, the investment project for construction and business of infrastructure at Que
Vo Industrial Park is entitled to an 11-year land rent exemption from the date the project is put into operation, based
on each land lease agreement signed with the State. During the period, the Company received natices of land rental
payment for 2,228,809 m2 and 1,907,651.8 m2 at the existing Que Vo Industrial Park and the expanded Que Vo
Industrial Park, respectively, and has not received notices of land rental for the remaining plots of land in these
industrial parks.

As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Company is still working with competent authorities to
determine the amount of compensation and site clearance that may be offset against land rent for the leased areas
and is coordinating with customers leasing land to clarify their annual land rent obligations.Pending the results of these
discussions, the Company has estimated the land rent obligations and accrued them into the cost of land and
infrastructure for lease purposes. The final land rent payable will depend on the decisions of the relevant State
autharities.

Regarding Nam Son— Hap Linh Industrial Park project:

From 10 June 2015 to 30 June 2025, the Company signed a land lease contract with the People's Committee of Bac
Ninh province for 1,874,105.7 m2 of land handed over at Nam Son - Hap Linh Industrial Park (with a lease term unfil
May 26, 2060). At the date of this separate financial statement, the Company has received a decision to exempt land
rent for phase 1 of the project with a land area of 1,874,105.7 m2, of which 340,554.4 m2 is exempted for the entire
land lease period and 1,533,551.3 m2 is only exempled from 31 December 2028 to 30 November 2035. Al the date of
this financial statement, the Company is still in the process of working with competent autharities to determine the land
rent obligation payable for the remaining land areas of Nam Son - Hap Linh Industrial Park,

Regarding Phuc Ninh New Urban Area project:

Pursuant to Decision No. 1526/Q0-CT dated 17 December 2003 and Decision No. 871/Q0-UBND dated 15 July 20089
of the People's Committee of Bac Ninh province on land allocation to the Company to implement the project of
constructing the Phuc Ninh New Urban Area, Bac Ninh town, Bac Ninh province, the Gompany must pay land use
fees, fees and charges in accordance with the provisions of law for the residential land lots, commercial land lots and
public works allocated for use in the construction of the Phuc Ninh New Urban Area according to the plan. Accordingly,
the Company received the handover of 49.53 hectares in 2010, completed the marking of the land area of 47.2
hectares in 2013 with the People's Committee of Bac Ninh province and paid the amount of VND175,735,431,000 for
land use fees according to Decision 2229/QD-CT of the People's Committee of Bac Ninh province dated 23 December
2004 on the approval of land use fee collection price (phase 1) and notices of assignment of land use fee payment
targets of the Tax Department of Bac Ninh province. At the date of the financial statements, the Company is still in the
process of working with the People's Committee of Bac Ninh province on the land use fee obligation for the remaining
land area of the project.

Regarding Trang Due Industrial Park project:

From 2011 to 2014, Salgon - Hal Phong Industrial Park Corporation ("SHP Company”) signed land lease contracts
with Hai Phong City People's Committee for the area that had been handed over at Trang Due Industrial Park with a
total area of 1,637,560.2 m?. Details of land lease contracts include:; Contract No. 04/HDTD dated 18 January 2011
(area 1,363,473.2 m?, term until 2057), Contract No. 178MHDTD dated 31 December 2013 (area 84,871.8 m?, term
until 2057), Contract No. 212/HDTD dated 31 December 2014 (area 95,811.5 m? term until 2057), Contract Mo.
13/HDTD dated 17 February 2014 (area 93,303.7 m?, term until 2057). On 12 December 2014, Hai Phong City Tax
Department issued Decision No. 4274/QD-CT on exemption of land rent for SHP Company. Accordingly, SHP
Company |s exempted from land rent until September 2017, December 2023 and November 2057 applicable to Land
Lease Contracts No. 04, No. 13 and No. 179 mentioned above respectively. On 13 October 2020, SHP Company
received Motice No. 5831/TE-BOL of the Economic Zone Management Board on the revised land rent price for the
above land area. Accordingly, the annual land rent from November 2022 to November 2027 payable for the above
area is VND33.6 billion. Of the above area, SHP Company has leased a total area of 703,048 m2 to LG Group units.
Because these units have enjoyed preferential exemptions from land rent and non-agricultural land tax according to a
number of official dispatches from relevant agencies in the pasl, SHP Company determined that SHP Company is not

obliged to pay the land rent corresponding to this area.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

At the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Group is still in the process of working with the authorities
to determine the amount of compensation and site clearance that can be offset against the land rent for the land areas
for which the above-mentioned land lease contracts have been signed, as well as working with customers leasing land
In industrial parks to clarify the obligation to pay annual land rent. In addition, SHP is also In the process of working
with the Hai Phong Tax Depariment to clarify the issue of preferential land rent exemption for the land area leased to
LG Electrics Vietnam Hai Phong Co., Ltd. and LG Display Vietnam Hal Phong Co., Lid.

Regarding Tan Phu Trung Industrial Park project:

According to Official Dispatch No, 6277/STC-BVG dated 5 July 2012, the Ho Chi Minh City Department of Finance
sent to Salgon - Northwest Urban Development Joint Stock Company (*SCD") to notify that the land rental price of Tan
Phu Trung Industrial Park is VND 5,240/m2, which is stable for 5 years from 20 March 2011. However, Decision No,
2083/QD-BTC dated 23 November 2011 and Circular No. 16/2013/TT-BTC dated 8 February 2013 on removing
difficulties for enterprises stipulate that the land rental price for 2011 to 2014 shall not exceed twice the land renial
price in 2010. Therefore, the unit price of land rental for the period 2011 to 2014 is VND 500/m2, equivalent to twice
the land price in 2010, signed with the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City under Land Lease Contract No.
2516/HD-TNMT-QHSDD dated 5 April 2007. According to the notices of land tax payment updated up to the date of
this consolidated financial statement, the land rental price from 2015 to 2023 is VND 2 310/m2. At the date of this
consolidated financial statement, SCD Company s still in the process of working with the authorities to determine the
amount of compensation and site clearance that can be offset against the land tax, to determine the land tax obligation
to be paid.

Regarding Quang Chau Industrial Park project:

From 2008 to 2024, Saigon - Bac Giang Industrial Park Corporation ("SBG") has signed Land Lease Confracts with
the People's Commiltee of Bac Giang province for the area that has been handed over at Quang Chau Industrial Park
with a total area of 4,877 411m According to the 2nd Investment Cerificate dated 12 September 2014, the Quang
Chau Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment and Business Project of SBG Company Is entitled to a 6-year land rent
exemption during the approved construction period and 11 years from the date of completion of construction and
putling the project info operation according to Official Letter No. 5403/BTC-QLNS dated 23 April 2015 of the
Department of Public Asset Management. As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, SBG is still in the
process of working with competent authorities to determine the land rent obligation to be paid.

Commitments related to capital construction costs:
As of 30 June 2025, the Group has contracts related to the development of projects including Que Vo Industrial Park

{existing and expanded), Phuc Minh Urban Area, Mam Son — Hap Linh Industrial Park, Quang Chau Urban Area, Trang
Due Industrial Park, Tan Phu Trung Industrial Park, and Trang Cat Urban Area, with construction value of work in
progress amount to approximately YND1,637.8 billion.

41.2 Capital contribution commitments

The Company has registered the establishment of a subsidiary, Vung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock Company,
and committed to contribute capital of VND745.2 billion. This is a joint stock company established under the Enterprise
Law of Vietnam, pursuant to Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 3502454725 issued by the Department of Planning
and Investment of Ba Ria — Vung Tau Province on 14 May 2021. The principal business aclivities of this company are
real estate project development and trading of land use rights belonging to the owner, user, or leased from others.

Mo capital contribution had been made as of 30 June 2025.

41.3 Disputes
Dispute with VTC Wireless Telecommunications Joint Stock Company
According to the Business Cooperation Agreement dated 12 February 2008 between VTC Wireless
Telecommunications Joint Stock Company ("WTC") and Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation (an
associate of the Company) and Business Registration Certificate No. 0103025781 dated 11 July 2008, the charter
capital of VTC - Saigontel Media Corporation was VND180 billion, of which the Company's equity interest was 18.2%
of the charter capital. Accordingly, the Company transferred VND30,700,200,000 (representing 19.2% of the charter
capital) to Huu Nghi Communications Joint Stock Company (the entity autharized under VTC's official letter) on 10
March 2008 for VTC Wireless Telecommunications Joint Stock Company to purchase assets for VTC - Saigontel
Media Corporation. However, the Company’s Board of Directors assessed that VTC has not completed the purchase
of these assets for VTC - Saigontel Media Corporation as committed. Therefore, the Company is currently working
with VTC to recover this investment. The Board of Directors has evaluated that this investment is expecied lo be
recoverable from VTC; accordingly, no provision has been recognized for the investment in VTC - Saigontel Media
Corparation.
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KinhBac City Development Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries

42. Comparative figures

The current interim consolidated financial statements were prepared as of 30 June 2025 and for the six-month period
then ended. Comparative figures in the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of cash flows, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements have been
extracted from the consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2024, which was audited by other auditors, and
from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consclidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2024, which were reviewed by other auditors.

43. Subsequent event

On 10 July 2025, Hung Yen Investment and Development Caorporation - a subsidiary of the Company - completed its
capital contribution to establish Trump International Vietnam Joint Stock Company, with Enterprise Registration
Number 0901196823 and registered charter capital of VNDS,168 billion. Accordingly, Hung Yen Investment and
Development Corporation holds 99% of the charter capital, resulting in the Company gaining contral over Trump
International Vietnam Joint Stock Company through an indirect ownership interest of 95.32%.

Except for the above events, no significant events have occurred since the reporting date which would impact on the
financial position of the Company as disclosed in the interim consclidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2025 or on the
consolidated results of its operation and its consolidated cash flows for the six-month period then ended.

44. Authorisation of interim consolidated financial statements

The interim consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issuance.

e

“Pham Phuc Hieu Luu Phuong Mai
Chief Accountant Preparer

52




3 H’H“ﬁ\' L




